STATE OF LOUISIANA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

IN THE MATTER OF: * Settlement Tracking No.
* SA-AE-24-0040
BASF CORPORATION *
* Enforcement Tracking Nos.
Al #2049, 30073 * AE-CN-19-00722
* AE-CN-19-00722A
*
PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE LOUISIANA  *
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT * Docket No. 2022-6502-DEQ
*

LA. R.S. 30:2001, ET SEQ.

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

The following Settlement Agreement is hereby agreed to between BASF Corporation
(“Respondent™) and the Department of Environmental Quality (“DEQ” or “the Department”), under
authority granted by the Louisiana Environmental Quality Act, La. R.S. 30:2001, e seq. (“the Act™).

I

Respondent is a corporation that owns and/or operates facilities located in Geismar,
Ascension Parish, Louisiana (“the Facilities™).

11

On June 16, 2021, the Department issued to Respondent a Consolidated Compliance Order &
Notice of Potential Penalty, Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-00722 (Exhibit 1).

On June 13, 2023, the Department issued to Respondent an Amended Consolidated
Compliance Order & Notice of Potential Penalty, Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-00722A
(Exhibit 2).

111

In response to the Consolidated Compliance Order & Notice of Potential Penalty and



Amended Consolidated Compliance Order & Notice of Potential Penalty, Respondent made timely
requests for hearings.
v
Respondent denies it committed any violations or that it is liable for any fines, forfeitures
and/or penalties.
v
Nonetheless, Respondent, without making any admission of liability under state or federal
statute or regulation, agrees to pay, and the Department agrees to accept, a payment in the amount of
THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED SIXTY AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($35,460.00),
of which Five Thousand Two Hundred One and 63/100 Dollars ($5,201.63) represents the
Department’s enforcement costs, in settlement of the claims set forth in this Settlement Agreement.
The total amount of money expended by Respondent on cash payments to the Department as
described above, shall be considered a civil penalty for tax purposes, as required by La. R.S.
30:2050.7(E)(1).
VI
Respondent further agrees that the Department may consider the inspection report(s), permit
record(s), the Consolidated Compliance Order & Notice of Potential Penalty, Amended Consolidated
Compliance Order & Notice of Potential Penalty and this Settlement Agreement for the purpose of
determining compliance history in connection with any future enforcement or permitting action by
the Department against Respondent, and in any such action Respondent shall be estopped from
objecting to the above-referenced documents being considered as proving the violations alleged

herein for the sole purpose of determining Respondent's compliance history.
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VII

This Settlement Agreement shall be considered a final order of the Secretary for all purposes,
including, but not limited to, enforcement under La. R.S. 30:2025(G)(2), and Respondent hereby
waives any right to administrative or judicial review of the terms of this agreement, except such
review as may be required for interpretation of this Settlement Agreement in any action by the
Department to enforce this Settlement Agreement.

Vil

This Settlement Agreement is being made in the interest of settling the state's claims and
avoiding for both parties the expense and effort involved in litigation or an adjudicatory hearing. In
agreeing to the compromise and Settlement Agreement, the Department considered the factors for
issuing civil penalties set forth in La. R.S. 30:2025(E) of the Act.

IX

As required by law, the Department has submitted this Settlement Agreement to the
Louisiana Attorney General for approval or rejection. The Attorney General’s concurrence is
appended to this Settlement Agreement.

X

The Respondent has caused a public notice advertisement to be placed in the official journal
of the parish governing authority in Ascension Parish, Louisiana. The advertisement, in form and
wording approved by the Department, announced the availability of this Settlement Agreement for
public view and comment and the opportunity for a public hearing. Respondent has submitted an
original proof-of-publication affidavit and an original public notice to the Department and, as of the
date this Settlement Agreement is executed on behalf of the Department, more than forty-five (45)

days have elapsed since publication of the notice.
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Xl
Payment is to be made within thirty (30) days from notice of the Secretary's signature. If
payment is not received within that time, this Settlement Agreement is voidable at the option of the
Department. The Respondent shall provide its tax identification number when submitting payment.
Payments are to be made by check, payable to the Department of Environmental Quality, and mailed
or delivered to the attention of Accountant Administrator, Financial Services Division, Department
of Environmental Quality, Post Office Box 4303, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 70821-4303. Each
payment shall be accompanied by a completed Settlement Payment Form attached hereto.
XII
In consideration of the above, any claims for penalties are hereby compromised and settled in
accordance with the terms of this Settlement Agreement.
XIII
Each undersigned representative of the parties certifies that he or she is fully authorized to
execute this Settlement Agreement on behalf of his or her respective party, and to legally bind such

party to its terms and conditions.
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BASF CORPORATION

BY:
(Signature)
(Printed)
TITLE:
THUS DONE AND SIGNED in duplicate original before me this day of
,20 , at :

NOTARY PUBLIC (ID # )

(stamped or printed)

LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Aurelia S. Giacometto, Secretary

BY:
Jerrie “Jerry” Lang, Assistant Secretary
Office of Environmental Compliance

THUS DONE AND SIGNED in duplicate original before me this day of
, 20 , at Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

NOTARY PUBLIC (ID # )

(stamped or printed)
Approved: ~ x{

Jerrie “Jerry” Lang, Assistant Secretary
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FINDINGS OF FACT
L
0t owns and/or operates the facilities in the below table:

| BASF Corporation- | 8404 River Road
Qeismiar Site (Geismar { Louisiana Highway 75
Site)

30073 BASF Corporation- | 36637 B Louisiana | Ascension _
North Geismiar Site Highway 30
(North Geismar Site)
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'On or about Febryary 13, 2017, and July 14, 2017, the. D ment performed inspections of ¢
Respondent’s facility, Geismar Site, Agency Interest Number 2049 to determine the Respondent’s dchee:
of complignce with the Act, _t_he Air Quality Regulations, and all applicable permits. While the
‘Department’s investigation s not yet complete, the following violations found in paragraphs Il A-H of
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Flodings of Fact portion °f this ¢nforcement action were noted during the course of the inspections
amlsahsequemﬁle review condueted on April 16, 2021.

Th ondent reported in the 2017 Fu'st Half Semiannual Monitoring Report dated September
’28 2017 EXCESS inventory of ethyl chloride was delivered to the site. As a cotrective action, the
nimun/maximum ethyl chloride inventory levels were added to the operator rounds with action
steps 'ﬂus i$ a violation of Specific Requirement No. 347 of Title V Permit No. 2459-V7, 40 CFR
68.65.a, and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

B, The Respondent reported in the 2016 Second Semiannual Monitoring Report dated March 31,
:2017, a.control valve on the natural gas enrichment line to the flare maffunctioned open allowing
‘excess natoral gas-to be sent to the flare (EQT 0369). Excess Particulate matter, Nitrogen oxides,
Carbon monoxide, Formaldehyde, and n-hexane were the pollutants released. The incident lasted

from-August 28, 2016 through December 15, 2016. This is a violation of Specific Requirement

No, 34 of Title V Permit No. 2028-V8; 40 CER 63.2470(), LAC 33:111.905, LAC 33:111.501.C4,

La, R.S. 30:3057(A)(1), and 30:2057(AX2).

C. The Respondent failed fo submit information every sixty (60) days about the status of the ongging
investigation of the below unauthorized discharges incidents (T199100 and T197866) until the
investigations have been oompleted and the results of i mmngahons have been subm:ttad

INCIDENT NO. | PERMIT | R
@A | NO.

| e Accorting 1o e folomse notification reports dated July 77, 2030, ihe Respondont.
A 2555.V8 reported that the Incident investigation was on-golng for the release that oceurred -

(1720/2020) T | on July 20, 2020. Email comespondence duted April |30, 2021, containg the
: reuired information to complete the investipation.
, T199100 ;mm,bmmmmmwmzmm
Bl Respondent teported that the incident investigation was cn-going “'wm
' ___m&wm&ruuﬁmmmpmuhm

The failure to sibmit information every sixty (60) days about the status of the ongoing
investigation of the unauthorized discharge until the investigation has been completed and the
results of investigation have been submitted is a violation of LAC 33:1.3925.A.3 and La. R.S.
30:2057(AX2).
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LACI3HL905.A
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“Fach wnauthonized release of emissions 1s a violation of any applicable permit and associated
requirement(s) listed above, LAC 33:111.905.A, LAC 33:11.501,C:4, and La. RS, 30:2057(AX1),
and 30:2057(A)(2). |
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Each fulhire ta operats according to permitted requivernents is a violation of any applicable permit
and associated requirement(s) fisted above, LAC 33:111.501,C4, La.R.S. 30:2057(AX1), and
La, R.8,30:2057¢A)(2).
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Each failure to meet fugitive emission requiréments is a violation of any applicable permit and
associated requirement(s) listed above, LAC33:11L501.C4, and La R:S.30:2057(A)1),
30:2057(A)(2).

Iv.

On. or about April 29,2016, May 3, 2016, and January 24, 2018, the Department performed
inspections of the Respondent’s facility, North Geismar Site, Agency Interest Number 30073 to determine
the Respondent’s degree of compliance with the Act; the Air Quality Regiilations, and all applicable

of the inspections and subsequent file review.condiscted o April 16, 2021,
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Speciﬁc
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, i exceedance is: a vaolat;on of sny applicable permit and associated requirement(s)
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Each failure to meet fugitive erission requirements is a violation of any applicable permit and

associated requirement(s) listed above, LAC 33:1IL.501.C.4 and La, R.S.30:2057(A)(1) and
30:2057(A)2).

C. The Respondent submitted a Notification of Change Form (NOC:1) to the Departiment via cover
letter dted June 15, 2018, was postmarked June 14, 2018, and listed the effective date of change
as November 29, 2016. According to the NOC:1, the: Respondent undérwent 'a facility name
charige from BASF Corporation DNT Plant to BASF Corporation North Geismar Site. The air
permits were transferred on July 23, 2018. The failure to submit the NOC-1 and associated

18
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 the Depariment within fort
of LAC 33:1:1907.8:

documentatio
 fucility ig 8’

ys after aname change of a permitted
TAN2):

D. ThoRes

dent fatled to submit the Annual. xi¢ Air Pollutant Emissions Inventory
tion Statement for 2018 by the April 30, 2019 deadline, in violation of LAC
'R.8.30:2057(A)(2)- The Respondent submitted the report on May 1, 2019,

B. The Réspondent reported in the 2020 First Setniannual Monitoring Report dated September 30,
2020, the failure to complete the Leak Detection and Repair (LDAR) monitoring within five (5)
calendar days after a leak has ocourred. Specifically, on or about April 19, 2020, the LDAR Leak
Notification fori, an intemaldocument that is used to notify the LDAR Contractor responsible
for conducting Methiod 21 ionitoririg that a leak had occurred and required follow up monitoring,
was not ~sﬁhtﬁii§¢dr¢§mplﬁfély. As a corrective action, the Respondent conducted a re-training on
LDAR notifications, added LDAR tracking to the daily Tier 2 communications board, and created
“LDAR Notification Needed and Submitted™ question on the shift supervisor’s daily electronic

‘Based on the foregoing, the'Respondent is hereby ordered:
To take, immediately upon receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, any and all steps necessary
to meet and inaintain compliance with the Act, the Air Quality Regulations, and all applicable permits.
IL
To.submit within thitty (30) days after receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, a written report
for (UNF 0010) as described in Paragraph ILA of the FINDINGS OF FACT portion of this

19
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iy at the Geismar Site, was

1l _(s)',-:and-amnnnt above permit imit(s), if applicable, for each reported deviation,
v, |

To sibrait within thirty (30) days after receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, a written report

that includes thé incident date and duration of the open-ended lines discovered for January 1, 2016 through

Decembier 31, 2020 us applicable, for the violations cited in Paragraph 11LH.1-32 of the FINDINGS OF

FACT pottion of this COMPLIANCE ORDER.

emmigsions; permit lin

V.
To submit within thirty (30) days afet receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, & written report

for (FUG 0006), (FUG 0007), and (CRG 0007) as descnbed in Paragraph IV.B,1-3 of the FINDINGS OF

FACT portion of this COM IAN that includes the specific number of open-ended lines

16, through T 31, 2020, if applicable.

- VL

“To submit ‘to the Enforcement Division, within thity (30) days afer receipt of this

YMPLIANCE ORDER; & written sepoit that includes a detailed description of the circumstances

surrounding the cited violations and actions taken orta be taken to achieve compliance with the Order

i.fPortln f'this COMPLIANCE ORDER; This report and all other reports or information required to be

subitnitted to the Enforcerient Division by this COMPLIANCE ORDER shall be submitted to:

Office of Environmental Compliance

Post Office Box 4312

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-4312

Attn:  Courfney Tolbert | |

Re: Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-00722
Agency Interest No. 2049, 30073

20
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;u,_

The request for an ‘adjudicatory hearing shall specify the provisions of the COMPLIANCE
ORDER on which the hearing is requested and shall briefly describe the basis for the request. This request
should referenice the Enforcement Tracking Number.and Agency Interest Number, which are located in
the uppet right-hand corner of the firét page of this document and should be directed to the following:

Department of Environmental Quality
Office of the Secretary

Post Office Box 4302
Baton Rouge, Louisiana. 70821-4302

Attn: Hearings Clerk; Legal Division
Re: Entorcement Traeking No. AE-CN-19-00722

toa heanng on a dlspuwd issue of matenal fact or of law under Sectwn 2050 4 of the Act for the
violation(s) described herein.

V.
‘The Respondent's Failure to request a hearing or to file-an appeal or the Respondent's withdrawal
of & request for hearing on this COMPLIANCE ORDER shall not preclude the Respondent from
contesting the findings of facts in any subsequent penalty action addressing the same violation(s), although

21
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thie Respondent is estopped from objecting to this COMPLIANCE ORDER becoming a permanent part
of its compliance history.
VL

Civil penalties.of not more than twenty-seven thousand five hundred dollars ($27,500) for ¢ach
day of violation for the violation(s) described herein may bé assessed. For violations which occurred on
August 15,2004, or after, civil penalties of not more than thirty-two thousand five hundred dollars
($32,500) roay be assessed for each day of violation. The Respondent's failure or refusal to comply with
this COMPLIANCE ORDER and the’ provisions herein will subject the Respondent: to possible
enforcement procedures under La. R.S: 30:2025; which could result in the assessment of & ¢ivil penalty in
an amotint of not mote than fifty thousand dollars (850,000) for each day of continued violation or
‘noncompliance. |

LY 18

For each violation described herein, the Department reserves the tight to seek civil penalties in any

manner allowed by law, and nothing tierein shall be construed to préclude the right to seek such penalies.
NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
L

Pursuant to La. R:S. 30:2050.3(B), you are hereby notified that the issuanice of a penalty
assessment is being considered for the violation(s) described herein. Written commients taay be filed
regarding the vwlat:on(s) and the contemplated penalty. If you elect to submit comments, it is requested
that they be submitted w:thmten(m) days of receipt of this notice.

11. _

Prior to the issuanice of additional appropriate enforcement action(s), you may request a meeting
with the Department to presenit any mitigating circumstances concerning the violation(s). I you would
like to have such a meeting, please contact Courtney Tolbert at 225-219-3347 within ten (10) days of
receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY.

IIL

The Department is required by La. R.S, 30:2025(E)(3)(a) to consider the gross revenues of the
Respondent and the monetary benefits of noncompliance to determine whether a penalty will be assessed
and the amount of such penalty. Please forward the Respondent’s most current annual gross revenue
statement along with a statement of the monetary benefits of noncompliance for the cited violation(s) to
the above named contact person within ten (10)-days of teceipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL

22
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pay t_he _st_at_ut_ory mnximum pen_al.ty as mxtlmed inLa. R.S. 3.0.,2025.
Iv.

The Department agsesses civil penalties based on LAC 33:1.Subpartl Chapter7. To expedite
closure of thls NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY portion, the Respondent may offer a settlement
-amount to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violation(s) described herein. The Respondent may
offer a settlernent amount, but the Department is under no obligation to enter into settlement negotiations.
The decision 10 procesd with a sgﬁlement is at the discretion of the Department. The settiemeit offer
amout may be entered on the attached “CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER AND NOTICE
OF POTENTIAL PENALTY REQUEST TO CLOSE" form. The Respondent must include a
justification of the offer. PO NOT submit payment of the offer amount with the form. The Department
willneview the setlement offerand notify the Resporident as o whether the offer is or is not accepied.

V.

Baton Rouge, Louisiana, this ' (0 A > dayof J Wt _ 2021,

Tt Tumelds
Assistant Secrétary
Office of Environmental Compliance

23
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enoeshouldbe senit to:

Copies of & request for a heating and/cr

Louisiana Department of E
Enforcement Division.
PO.Box4312
Baton Rouge, LA 70821:4312
Attention: Courtney Tolbert

24
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IX)U!SIANA D_EP ARTMENT QF’ BNVIRGNMBHTAL QUALITY
EOFE 'VIRONMBNTALCOMPHANCB
‘CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER &
NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
708214312 REQUEST TOCLO&
AE-CN- 9~00722 ' Contact Name Courtaoy Tolbcrt
- - Cmﬁﬂl’bom No, 225-2!9«3347

Faciiity Name: SoOATRRmI L
Lefa 1 _| Physical Location: Seo Attachment 1
: 3s¢1rlaza'rewnrm Clty, State, Zip: Sec Attachment 1
1 Baton. 6 |Parish: See Attachment 1

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE Date Completed |  Copy Atiached?
All written Feports were submitted to the Deperfment within 30 0ays of feceipt of the | | N '
COMPLIANCE ORDER in sccordance with Pmphs 11-VI1 of the “Order” pottion of the
COMPLIANCE ORDER. _
[ ATi ftems Tn the “Findings of Fact” portion of the COMPLIANCE ORDER were sdidressed

mdt!:e&cﬂil;ylsbeingopmwdmmmandmalnuhlhemqumofﬂlew
on 6 ﬁeCOMPUANCEORDE&mmMWmhkMuOF I

‘(check the applicable option)

tepd isnoiimemtedhmteﬁnghtosemmmﬂ negmiuhonswiﬂnhel)oparhnmt with the mtdcrsundingmuhe
e Dmm«nmmﬁnghtmmciwlwmfﬁﬁbmdmucaslSubpmlCbapter?

In order 0 resolve any claim for clvi! pemlues for the vinlations in NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY (AB-CN-19-00722),
. | the Respondent is interested in entering Into settlement negotiations with the Department and would like to set up & mecting to
discuss settiement ]Sm;hﬂm

In order fo resoive any claim. for civil pcualtm for the violations In NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY (AE-CN-19-00722),
the Rqspmdent I8 intete: . i into settlement negotiations with the Department and offers 10 pay
3  which simit include LDEQ enforcement costs and any monetary benefit of non-compliance.

» Mnngtary component = ..
» Beneficial Environmental Project (BEPjoomponmt (optionat)= | 5
s D& NOT SUBW PA YMENT OoF THE OFFER WITH THIS FORM the qurtmnl will review the setilement offer and

: wrt{fjf wnder pnmsm in Laulaim and Uni:ed States law thdproﬂdc a'imtnd pamldajorfalse .ﬂmmem that based on injormation

| and belief formed afier reasonabls inguiry, the staleients and Information atiached and the compliancé statement above, aré true, actirate,

1 and complete. | also certify that 1 do not owe ovtstanding fees or penalties to the wieni for. this Jocility of any other facillty  owh or
aperate. 1 further certify that I am either the Rapondzm or an authorized represeiitative of the Respondent,

Respondeal's Signature Respondent's Prinfed Name Respondent's Tiie

25
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e1’'s Phoms
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Site)

BASF Corporafion _
North Geismar Site

36637 B Louisiana
Highway 30

(North Geismar Site)

27
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WHATISASE'!TLEME_ T :
;  detormning Mambmmammm&m:mmdwmt :
mmemmammmmmmmammmwmmmmmw
resolve the Depariment's claim for a penay, §
HOW DOES THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT PROCESS WORK?
Ta begin the settlement agreenent process, the Department must receive a wiitien seilement offer. Once this offer is %
submitied, 1t is set for approval by the Assistant Se of the Office of Envitonmental Campliance. The formal 3§
&wwmhdmmmtmmmmmmmmmwmmw
concurrence: pedod. During this time, the: Respondent s required to run-  public notice in an official joumal andior § -
mmdmdmtmmmmmhmmw @45 day public comment period is apened o allow  §
the public to submit commedls. Once the Dap has réceived concumence, tha sottiement agreement is signed by
§  both paries, The Dapartm 'emmasabwamm%mﬁmmnamtmmm -
k envmmntdpro!ect(BEP) g
§ WHAT SHOULDHNCLUDE IN A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT? ]
| The Department uses the penalty determination method defined In LAC 33:.705 as a guideline lo accepting setioment |
MWMMBMmeaMm&MMWMMMMMW
the nature and gravity of the violation and the degree of riskfmpact to human health and propary.

Mmdmwmﬂeﬂ!mw
MWWMGWMGM}AMNM@Mbmmmuamwm
biy Noh volurrie andior fequent aocumence: siior High polviant conoantaion,
mmhmmmawummmmwmmmmmmm
oucuranos axndior polubant concentration that may be axpeciad ko have @ debimental effect under certain condlions
aimr(mhm«r:inih':mjamwmdmhmwkm%mmmmmmmmmau

Nahmw&avﬁydﬂm%lahon
wmamm mmm wmmmmummmamwbm
e s am atankabl 1vegatig the inentof the equirecnsnts, but some krpdermentabion of he requiremant ocuurred.
mmmmmumwmm MW&M&M

i the fol Y Vet speic facory:

muuﬁm;
o wbatcxmmwﬁmwmmm
mwmmmummmmmwwwuw
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Given the pravious information; the following formula is tsed to oblain 3 penaty amount.
‘Pocalty Event Tota « Ponalty Event Mok + (Adwsimen! Percentage ¥ [Ponally Event Maxiur - Peralty Event Minimum )

ARer this, meﬂepamtaddsanymommmmmmhmbﬂwpenanymnt In the event that & monstary 3

Is gained due o the delay of a cost that is ulimately paid, the Department adds the applicable judiclal Interest.  §
Finaﬂy the Department adds all response costs Inciuding, but nat kied 10, the cost of conducting inspections, and the §
staff time davoled fo thé preparation of reports and issuing enforcement actions.

£ WHATIS A BEP?
: ABEPIs 8 project thal provides for environmental mitigation which the resporident fs not otherwise legally requirad fo per-
form, but which the.defendantirespondent agrees to undertake as a component of the satflment agreement.
‘Project catagorles for BEPs include publc hialth, pollution pravention, poluon reduction, envimonmental restoration and:
protection, assessinents and audils, mvkonmental compilance promotion, and emergency planning, preparedness and -
mmwmmm ent determines that these prolects have environmental mert
andismahﬁymme twﬁnmemmomeBEPregum ]
 WHAT HAPPENS IF MY OFFER 18 REJECTED?
- Hanofferls refected by the Assistant Secretary, the Legal Division will contact the responsibie party, or anyons
§  designated as an appropriate contact in the setlsment offer; to discuss any discrepancies.
WHEH& CAN ! FIND EXAMPLES AND MORE INFORMATION?

wenerns S080CHEDIG in EDMS 1 ﬂwefollowhgﬁhts
m»mrméﬁammmm 1

h ww_specﬂicmupium‘:’lbepmvidedmml
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Jonn Ber Enwasps W\GERRY Rocer W. GmvGLEs

GOVERNOR | it SECRETARY
- State of Louigiana
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

JUN 13 0B

CERTIFIED MAIL (7021 1970 0000 3974 0297)
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

BASF CORPORATION |
¢/0 C T CORPORATION SYSTEM
Agent for Servics of Process

3867 Plaza Tower Drive

Baton Roiigie, Louisiana 70816 .

RE: AMENDED CONSOLID.

COMPLIANCE ORDER &
ENFORCEMENT NG NO. AE-CN-19-007224
AGENCY 2049 & 30073

_ Pursuant to the Louisiana Environmental Quality Act (La, R.S. 30:2001, et seq.), the attached
AMENDED CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL

PENALTY is hereby served on BASF CORPORATION (RESPONDENT) for the violations described
therein,

NOTICE OF

Any questions concerning this action should be directed to Courtney Tolbert at 225-219-3347 o
Courtney. Tolbert@la.gov.

Sincerely,

Angela Marse
\dministrator
Enforcement Division
AMICIT/cjt
Alt ID No. 0180-00013 & 0180-00069
Attachment EXHIBIT

2

taooes

Pose Otfice Box 4312 » Baton Rovge, Lovisiana 70821-4312 » Phone 225.219-37190 » Eax 225.219.3320
www.degq.loutsianagoy
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¢t BASF Corporation- Noith Geismar Site
c/a Jervey Cheveallier
Post Office Box 670
Geismar, Lovisiana 70734-0670
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'STATE OF LOUISIANA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL. QGALITY

OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

N THE MATTER OF

ENFORCEMENT TRACKING NO.

_Q-ALTmNOSL 0180-00013, 0180-00069 AE-CN-19-007224
o - AGENCY INTEREST NO.
:;;pRQCEEmNGs UNDER THE LOUISIA_NA | |
2049 & 300673

ECTE S R S N L I

: na Depdr ‘of . Envnonmental Quahty (the Department) hereby amends the
CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY,
ENFORCEMENT TRACKING ‘NO. AE-CN:19:0072% issued o BASF CORPORATION
(RESPONDENT) on June 16, 2021, in the above-captioned matter as follows:

The Department heréby amends Findings of Fact paragraphs 1IEA, B, E; G, H and Findings of Fact
paragraphs IV.A-C to read as follows:

“IIL

On or about February 13, 2017, and July 14, 2017, the Department performed inspections of the
Respondent’s facility, Geismar Site, Agency Interest Number 2049, to determine the Respondent’s degree
of compliance with the -Aect, the Air Quality 'I{egulations, and. all ‘applicable ‘permits. While the
Department’s investigation s not yet complete, the following violatiods found in paragrapbs IILA-H of
the Findings of Fact portion of this enforcement action were noted duting the course of the inspections

and subsequent file review conducted on April 16, 2021.
A. The Respondent reported in the 2017 First Half EO/EG Unit Semiannual Monitoring Report
dated Séprer 28, 2017; excess inventory of ethyl chloride was: delivered to the site.
Specifically, the EO/EG Unit normally houses six (6) 1,500 pounds (1bs.) contairiers of ethy]
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chioride, equaling 9,000 1bs, of ethyl chloride. The threshold quantity of ethyl chloride is
10, 000 Ibs. and 8 fhcility containing at or above threshold quantity is required to comply with
all spplicable ‘reg lations ‘in. 40°CFR 68, In corespondence dated August 11, 2022, the
Respondent stated ¢ight (8) containers had been delivered to the EO/EQ Unit, equaling 12,000
Ibs., approxiuiately 2,000 Ibs. above the threshold quantity for ethy] chloride. The report cited
a violation Specific Requirement 347 of Title V Air Permit No. 2459-V7, which requires the
Respondent to comply with the provisions of 40 CFR 68. Pursuant to 40 CFR 68.190(b)(4),
the owner or operatat is required 0 revise and update the risk management plan (RMP) no
later than the date on which a regulated substance is first present above a threshold quantity in
a new process.. Pursuait to 40 CFR 68.3, a process is defined as any activity involving a
regulated substance including any use, storage, manufacturing, handling, or on-site movement
of such substances, or combination of theése activities. Additionally, a covered process is
defined a5 & process that has 4 regulated substance present in more than a threshiold quantity.
The Respondent did not submit an updated RMP to the EPA to include ethyl chioride as a
covered process. This is a violation of 40 CFR 68.190(b)(4), which language has been
incorporated by reference in LAC 33:111.5901.A, and La. R.S, 30:2057(A)(2). As a corrective
action, the miniimum/maximum ethyl chloride {nventory levels were added to the operator
rounds with action steps.

B. The Respondent reported in the 2016 Second Semiannual Monitoring Report dated March 31,
2017, & control valve on the natural gas enrichment line to the flare malfunctioned in the open
position allowing excess natural pas to be sent to the flare (EQT 0369). Excess Particulate
matter, Nitrogen oxides, Carbon monoxide, Formaldehyde, and n-hexane were the pollutants
released. The incident lasted from August 28, 2016 through December 13, 2016, Each day-of
operating the flare with excess emissions of each pollutant is a violation of Title V Permit No.
2028-V8, LAC 33:IL501.C4, LAC 3311905, La. RS. 30:2057(A)1), and
La. R.S. 30:2057(AX2).
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2019

“Hach failure to operabe according o permitted requirements is a violation of any -'applicéble
LAC 33:111.501.C 4,

permit

requirement(s)

wlﬂﬁwmuww
: mmmy%m
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mmv 2020, the

modiﬁwﬁm No. 2427-V$,

LACI:HISIOR LY

listed  above,

La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1), aad La. R.S. 30:2057(AX2).
G. The Respondént reported the following emission exceedances:
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W | 40 crR 60322002)
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W3 Frovide Ineldeht D i Duraion of DEvison,
Each failure to meet fugitive emission requirements is a violation of any applicable permit arid
associated requirement(s) listed above, LAC 33:111.501,C 4, La. R.S. 30:2057(AX1), and La. R-S.
30:2057(A)(2).
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Onvorabout April 29, 2016, May 3, 2016, and January 24, 2018, the Department performed inspections
of the Respondent’s facility, North Geismar Site, Agency Interest Number 30073 to determine the
Respondent's degroe of compliance. with the Act, the Air Quality Regulations, and all applicable permits.
While the Department's investigation is not yet complete, the following violations found in Paragraphs IV,
A-E of the Findings of Fact portion of this enfotcement action were nated during the course of the inspections
and subsequent file review conducted on May 22, 2023,

- A. The Respondent reported the following emission exceedances:

OAvasper | DEOXB T 4
year)

Nitrogen'axides |  Nitrogen 3
(111 o pex oxides Gaides
yesr) 104 tons

POV | g | OOtomeper | @iy f .09 ,
Fong’ OrI8016 year) o B e sousry

N .. 016 _ v | 2009, bR
| Somimnd | gyne0.v0 95 how) | 7 | reiningmd ureterence guide

Mot | ey | @ad
year) 007 tony | .&i;mw

| Ooviomper | Soifwdionide |y oy per
year) Trioms | e

Vo ; voe
OMwmper | YOSIB 1 0474000 per

listed above, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1), and La. R.S. 30:2057(AX2).
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v Provide Incliant D

Each failure to- ricet ﬁ;gmyeem;ssmn requirements is a violation of any applicable permit and
associated requirement(s) listed above, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1), and La, R.S.
30:2057(A)2).
C. The Respondent submitted a Notification of Change Form (NOC-1) to the Department via cover
letter dated June 15, 2018, postmarked June 14, 2018, which listed the effective date of change as
November 29, 2016. According to the NOC-1, the Respondent underwent a facility name change
from BASF Corporation DNT Plant to BASF Corporation North Geismar Site. In a letter dated
July 23, 2018, the Department notified the Respondent that Title V Air Permit Nos 3106-V0 and

1 and associated documentation to the Department within forty-five (45) days after a name change
of a penmitted facility is s violation of LAC 33:11905.A and L, RS, 30:2057(A)2).”

II.

The Department hereby adds Paragtaphs V.A-B and VI to the Findings of Fact portion of Consolidated
Compliance Order & Notice of Potential Penalty, Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN:19-00722 as
follows;

1
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V.

On or about March 23, 2020, and June 8, 2023, the Department performed an inspection and a
subsequent file review of the Respondent’s facility, Geismar Site, Agency Interest Number 2049, to
determine the Respondent's degree of compliance with the Act, the Air Quality Regulations, and all
applicable permits, While:the Depdrtment’s investigation is not yet complete, the following violations
were noted during the. course of the inspection and subsequent file review:

A. The Respondent failed to diligently maintain an air pollution control device in proper working
order, whichi resulted in a preventable release of anhydrous ammonia sbove reportable quantity
(RQ) from AME(2(a), Pressure Vessel TK-1201 (Ammonia) (EQT0662). On or about March 23,
2020, the Department performed an inspection in response to the unauthorized release (Incident

No. T196171) of an estimated 157 pounds (1bs.) of anhydrous ammionia, spproximately 57 Ibs.

above the RQ of 100 Ibs. According to the follow-up notification dated March 26, 2020, the release
occurred at the Specialty Amines Usit, Amines Tank Farm, where Facility supervision observed
pure liquid ammonia leaking from a hole in the vent header piping, which immediately vaporized
intorthie atmiosphere, The unauthorized 1r¢lease lasted for approximately 70 minutes until the units

were: syt down and the leak was stopped. In comrespondence dated August 5, 2020, ‘the
Resporiderit's representative stated the leak on the vent header was caused by externial corrosion
on a weld from improper initial application of the weld costing, The Respondent performed the
following immediate corrective actions: installed a clamp on the failed line; modified parameters
to generate a larger gap between nitrogen pressure and vent pressure setpoints on EQT0662 to
minimize the chance of entrainlng liquid while venting; modified parameters to run at a lower,
mofre stable level in the ammonia tank to increase the vapor space and reduce the pressure increase
while filling to minimize the chance of entraining liquid while venting; hired a Coating Protection
Engineer; and implemented quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC) practices for pipe coatings
following field welds. In correspondenice dated October 8, 2021, the Res_pondent‘s.t'eprescntati@
stated the long term correstive action-included, the internal inspection of the ammonia tank was
moved to the April/May 2021 turnaround, During the turnaround inspection of the ammonia tank,
the temporary clamp was removed from the fhiled line and the piping was replaced and p..ropér
coating was applied. The failure to diligently maintain an air pollution control device in proper
working ordet, which resulted in a preventable release of anhydrous ammonia is a violation of
LAC 33:111.905.A, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1), and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)2).

12
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B. The Respondent failed to submit updates of the status of an ongoing investigation of the
unaythorized discharge evéry 60 days until the investigation has been completed and the results of
‘the investigation have been submiitted. Specifically, the initial written notification for the Incident
T196171 ubraitted to the Department ont March 26, 2020; lowever, the cause of the

release was shll under mvestigat:on The cause for the tmauthonzed dxschargc was not subnﬁtted

invesﬁgnnon were .d_l!ﬁ Ihﬂ}:ﬁllme to submnt updates of the status ofan on_go_ing_---invmigaﬁon of

the unsuthorized discharge every 60 days unti] the investigation has been completed and the results

of the investigation have been submitted is a violstion of LAC 33:13925.A.3 and La. R.S.

30:2057(AX2).

V1L

On or sbout December 12, 2022, and June 8, 2023, the Department performed an inspection and a
subsequent file review of the Respondent’s facility, North Geismar Site, Agency Interest Number 30073,
to determine the Respondent’s degree of compliance with the Act, the Air Quality Regulations, and all
applicable permits. While the Department’s investigation js not yet complete, the following violations
‘were noted during the course of the inspection and subsequent file review:

‘In the 2022 First Semiannual Monitoring Report dated September 30, 2022, the Respondent
reported an excursion from an established minimim temperatire parameter set for the Vent Gas
Treatment System (BQT 0020), In Notification of Compliance Status dated August 28, 2009, the
Respondent included the test results for the EQT 0020 performance test conducted on May 20,
1999. The teport stated the average tempersture needed for EQT 0020 to comply with the 20 parts
per million by volume (ppmv) total hydrocarbons at three percent oxygen was established to be
1516 degrees Fahrenheit, The 2022 First Semiannual Monitoring Report stated that on February 1,
2022, local low and lowlow alarms based on a rolling 24-hour calculation were acknowledged by
operations while troubleshooting high stack temperature. Additionally, once the alarms are cleared,
they do not re-alarm unless the calculation gets above the set point average and then drops below
the set point average again. During the reported event, the average temperature did not return above
the minimum temperature set point; therefore, the alarms did not reset. After the alarm was cleared,
there was no reminder to address the issue before reaching the minimum 24-hour average. In a
Revised Semiannual Perfodic’ Report dated September 30, 2022, the Respondent reported the
average re-oxidation furnacs riinimum temperature daily average for EQT 0020 on February 1,

13
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2022 was 1510 degrees Fahrenheit. The failure to maintain established minimum temperature
parameter set for the Vent (as Treatment System (BQT 0020) is a violation of 40 CFR 63.113(a)2),
‘which language has ‘been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:II1.5122.A, Specific
Requirements 1, 4, and 109 of Title V- Air Permit No. 0180-00069-V2, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, and

La. R.S. 30:2057(A)2). As a corrective action, the Respondent retrained operations on regulated

operating parameters, updated the DCS graphics and alamming scheme, and set up an ‘cmail

notification when the instantaneous iinfimum temperature is reached to allow time to follow up
with operations.”
.

The Department hereby amends paragraph VI of the Order Portion of Consolidated Compliance
Order & Notice of Potential Penalty, Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-00722 and adds paragraph
VI to the Order Portion of Consolidated Compliance Order & Notice of Potential Penalty, Enforcement
Tracking No. AE-CN-19-00722 as follows:

“VI.

To submit within thirty (30) days after receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, the date and time
of delivety and the date and time of pick-up of the excess inventary of ethyl chloride and the date on
which the inventory fell below 10,000 Ibs, as referenced in the amended Findings of Fact paragraph IILA.
Additionally, provide information on how the facility complied with 40 CFR 68 during the period of time
the excess ethyl chloride was onsite.

Vil

To submit to the Enforcement Division, within thirty (30) days after receipt of this AMENDED
CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY, a written
report that includés a detailed description of the circumstances surfounding the cited violations added in
this AMENDED CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL
PENALTY and actions taken or to be taken to achieve compliance with the Order Portion of this
AMENDED CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL
PENALTY. This report and all other reports or information required to be submitted to the Enforcement
Division by this AMENDED CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF
POTENTIAL PENALTY shall be submitted to: '

14
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Office of Bavirorimentil Compliance
Post OﬁwBox 4 12 |

AE-CN-19:00722A
Azmylnterut Nos. 2049 & 30073”

IV.
sartment incorporates all of the remainder of the original CONSOLIDATED
COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY, ENFORCEMENT
'TRACKING NO. AE-CN-19-00722A and AGENCY INTEREST NOS. 2049 & 30073 ss if reiterated
‘herein.
V,
This AMENDED CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF
"POTENTIAL PENALTY is effective upon receipt.

Baton:Rouge; Lovisiana, this 13/ da 52023,

Office of Enmnmenta] Compliance

Copies of a request for a hearing and/or related correspondence should be sent to:

Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality
Office of Environmental Compliance
Enforcement Division

Post Office Box 4312

Baton Rouge, LA 70821-4312

Attention: Courtney Tolbert

15
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partn 'ntbasdewmmatapanatyis wafranted for a violation, the Assisiant Sectetary of the Department,
memnctmmeofﬂte y éral, may enter into a seftement agreement with the Respondent as a meana to .

,theRespmdemisrequb'edtomuapubncnoﬂceinanommma!amla '
sach affected parish. Afler which, 4 45 day-public cominent peried is opened o aflow |
¢ the Department has received concuence, the sefilement agreement is signéd by

1 forwards a letter to the responsible party o establish a payment plan andior beneficial -

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT?
nation method defined In LAC 33:1.705 as a guideline to actepting setliement
8.7 0 a8 penally range for each violation based on the two violation spectiic factors,
tha nature and gravity of the viok Ité degres of isk/impact to human health and property. ‘

Degree of Risk toHumanHealtborPtbp'em
Major. (actual measurable harm or substantial fisk of harm) A violation 6 major impacd fo an envirpnmental resource of a hazard characterized
mmmaﬁ&mmmmmh politant concantration.
Moderate: {potental for measusble delrimentsl impact) A violalion of moderale Impact md bazard iay bo one characterized by occasiona
oocurrence andlor pollutent concentration that may be ekpactad to have a detrimental eflect under derlaln conditions
Minor: {no harm o riek of hann) A vietation of mlmc Impiact are isotalad singla incidencas and thal cause ia measurable detrimental effect of
iy adménistrative In Rt
Nature and Gravity of the Violation
Malor: Violations of slatutes, ragulauans, orders, permi imits, o permit requirements that result in negating the intent of the requirement to such
an gxtent that it or 1o Ty fation of requirements ooourred,
Moderate: Violations that resuit in sybstantially negating the inlsnt of the requirements, bui some Implamentation of the requirements octurred.
Minor: Vicjatiors that résult in some deviation from the intent of the reqilrement; however, substartidl implmentation is demonstrated,
The range Is adjusted using the following viotator specific factors:
1. Distory of previous viclatiorss or RONGOTplance;
2, ross tevenes penersted by the respondent
3degmdwﬂbfﬁty racalctrance, deflance, of indifference to regifations of orders;
4, whethar oide has feiled t mitigate of lo make & ressonable atiernpt ko miigate the damages cosied by the viotation; and
5w 00 30k) the surmdunding circumstanices were mmediately reportad 1 e deparment, and wheter the
vioksition wai conosaled of these was a1 atiempt ko concaal by the Respondent
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Given the previous nformation, thefollowing formula I iised to obtain & penalty amount,
-Penaky Event Total = Penalty Event Minkmumm + (Adjustment Percstitage x [Penalty Event Maximum - Penalty Event Mnimum [)
After this, the Department adds any monetary benefit of foncompliance (0 the penalty evenl. In the event that a monetary
benefit 15 gained due to the delay of & cost that 1 ultimalely paid, the Deparment adds the applicable judicial interest. §
Findlly, the Daparment adds all résponss costs including, but pot limited to, the cost of conducting inspections, and the
-stalf time devoled o the preparation of reports and issuing enforcement actions.
WHAT IS A BEP? |

A BEP s a.pitject that provides for environmental mitigation which the respondent is not otherwise egally required to per-
form, but which the defendantirespondent agrees o undertake 88 & companent of ihé settiement agreement.
Project calegorles Yor BEPs include public health, pollution prevention, poliution reduction, environmental restoration and
protection, assessments and audits, environmental compliance promotion, and emergency planning, preparedness and
tesponge. Other projects may be considered If the Department datermines that these projects have environmental merit -
and la-otherwisa fully consistent with the intent of the BEP regulations.

 WHAT HAPPENS IF MY OFFER IS REJECTED?
If an offer is rejected by the Assistant Secretary, the Legal Division will contact the responsibie party, or anyone
designated as an appropriate contact in the setisment offer, fo discuss any discrepancles.

| WHERE CAN | FIND EXAMPLES AND MORE INFORMATION?

Settement AGroements ............ecouvveceon,

-Peanalty Datermination MEtNO ................cooveneceirrectmsimsris s sieis

TTeE B





